
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ PROCEEDINGS 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    ss 
County of Rio Grande ) 
 
The Board of Rio Grande County Commissioners met in regular session on 
Wednesday, August 5, 2015. Members present were Chairman Doug Davie, 
Commissioner Karla Shriver, Commissioner Pam Bricker, Financial Officer Lori 
McGraw, County Administrator Carol Osborn, and Clerk of the Board Mona Syring.  
 
At 9:00 a.m., Chairman Davie called the meeting to order and led the opening prayer. 
The Pledge of Allegiance was said. Commissioner Shriver moved to accept the agenda 
as presented. Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
Commissioner Bricker moved to accept the minutes from the July 29, 2015, meeting 
with changes. Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
Chairman Davie asked if there were any public comments and there were none. 
 
July claims were presented. Commissioner Bricker moved to approve the claims. 
Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
COUNTY GENERAL   
Ace Towing Sheriff  $180.50  
Brown's Septic Svc Inc. Sheriff  $435.00  
Cata-Co Assn Tax Appraisal Membership  $25.00  
Center School District 2nd SRS Distribution  $3,485.06  
Century Link Telephone  $9.24  
Century Link Telephone  $417.13  
Century Link Telephone  $750.09  
Century Link Telephone  $682.63  
Century Link Telephone  $126.94  
CO Dept. of Public Health Wastewater Treatment  $100.00  
CO Bureau of Investigation Sheriff  $52.50  
Creative Product Source Sheriff  $332.38  
Del Norte School District SRS Distribution  $26,843.75  
District Attorney Office 7th Portion Budget  $14,583.33  
El Paso County Coroner Pathology  $1,350.00  
Endpoint Direct  Postage  $582.20  
Gobins Computer Ink  $618.80  
Haas Concrete Curb/Gutter Repair Annex  $8,204.00  
Jerry Dennis Telephone, Mileage  $519.45  
Lou's Gloves, Inc. Sheriff  $176.00  
Monte Vista Machine Tool Jail Cell Repair  $10,069.00  
Monte Vista School District 2nd SRS Distribution  $59,212.85  
Morphotrust USA Sheriff  $2,109.32  
Owsley and Sons Walk Repair Museum  $2,650.00  
Pro Com Drug Test  $90.00  
Rio Grande County SRS 2015  $44,629.26  
Sargent School District 2nd SRS Distribution  $20,744.90  



SLV Auto Repair Sheriff  $1,013.26  
Total Office Solutions Computer Supplies  $26.99  
Town of Del Norte Water/Sewer  $1,262.44  
Transformative Wave Sheriff  $305.00  
Valley Lock and Security Museum  $105.00  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $14.04  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $101.58  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $1,265.86  
Xcel Energy Electric/Gas  $1,876.70  
Xcel Energy Electric/Gas  $2,640.60  
TOTAL     $207,590.80  
   
American Planning Assoc. Membership  $295.00  
Brumley Plumbing Heating CSU Extension  $376.00  
Business Solutions Copier Lease  $54.73  
CBI Printers Residential Card Printing  $260.00  
Century Link Telephone  $30.55  
Century Link Telephone  $97.50  
Del Norte Auto Supply Sheriff  $95.84  
Direct TV Sheriff  $152.48  
Fernandez Chile Co Sheriff  $39.75  
First Bankcard Credit Card  $3,122.76  
Galls, Inc. Sheriff  $115.00  
Gobins  Copier Lease  $31.50  
Great America Financial Copier Lease  $452.00  
Harvey Duchene Lake City Museum  $1,687.05  
Haynie's Inc. Sheriff  $46.90  
J&S appliance Svc Sheriff  $178.95  
Jack's Market Sheriff  $379.95  
Jeff Babcock Homeland Security  $4,986.08  
Ken's Service Center Vehicle Repair  $879.36  
Leds, LLC Storage  $1,496.00  
Meadow Gold Dairies Sheriff  $414.75  
Miles Marketing Destination Advertising  $7,650.00  
Mona Syring Clerk  $755.60  
Monte Vista Cooperative Sheriff  $71.98  
Neve's Uniforms Sheriff  $1,780.00  
O&V Printing Checks  $87.02  
Peggy J. Kern Mileage  $36.45  
Phil Long Ford Sheriff  $29,342.88  
Pitts Resource Consulting RWEACT Consulting  $1,402.53  
Rent-a-Lift Rental (Hold)  $2,200.00  
Rio Grande Pharmacy Sheriff  $1,149.42  
Rose Vanderpool Mileage  $98.72  
Safeway Inc. Sheriff  $110.26  
Shamrock Foods Company Sheriff  $4,954.96  
State of Colorado August Renewals  $479.76  
Strohmayer's Funeral Home Coroner  $1,050.00  
Torres Plumbing & Heating Sheriff  $2,351.74  
Total Office Solutions Office Supplies  $1,282.49  
Town and Country Sheriff  $390.39  



Ultramax Sheriff  $2,782.00  
United Reprographic Maintenance Agreement  $100.91  
Valley Courier Sheriff  $315.50  
Valley Electric Sheriff  $470.40  
Valley Publishing Sheriff; Semi Annual Report  $281.00  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $101.70  
Wex Bank Fuel  $3,654.56  
Wex Bank Fuel  $192.62  
William F. Dunn Attorney Fees  $1,068.75  
WSB Computer Services Veterans Service Computer  $4,669.50  
WSB Recyclers, LLC Recycling  $16.00  
Xerox Business Services Imaging  $5,935.75  
TOTAL     $89,975.04  
   
American Fidelity July Payroll  $223.58  
American Public Life July Payroll  $81.10  
California State July Payroll  $500.00  
Community Bank July Payroll  $66,019.16  
Credit Service: Legal De July Payroll  $179.03  
Family Support Registry July Payroll  $54.16  
Family Support Registry July Payroll  $355.00  
Family Support Registry July Payroll  $405.00  
Rio Grande County Treasurer July Payroll 53,979.16 
Security Benefit July Payroll  $175.00  
TOTAL   $121,971.19  
   
ROAD AND BRIDGE   
Century Link Telephone  $57.38  
D-A Lubricant Company Supplies  $6,286.50  
Gunbarrel Service Station Repair  $207.00  
Kimrad Transport LP Fuel  $1,768.06  
Century Link Electric  $177.00  
Valley Equipment Leasing Parts  $21,024.36  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $143.77  
Xcel Energy Electric/Gas  $2,498.55  
TOTAL   $32,162.62  
   
2nd Steel Parts  $3,777.10  
Airgas USA, LLC Gases  $625.11  
Alta Fuels Fuel  $17,672.74  
Asphalt Drum Mixers, Inc. Asphalt Drum  $103.50  
Blue Tarp Financial Inc. Parts  $242.03  
Brown's Septic Svc Inc. Cleaning  $26.50  
Century Link Telephone  $56.67  
Century Link Telephone  $397.02  
Century Link Telephone  $51.59  
Colorado Dept. Revenue Driver's Cert (Hold)  $52.00  
Del Norte Auto Supply Parts  $64.51  
Diana Lynn Hawkins Well Sensor (Hold)  $250.00  
Drive Train Industries Parts  $214.84  
First Bankcard Credit Card  $101.15  



Great America Financial Copy Machine Maintenance  $136.17  
Haynie's Inc. Supplies  $806.99  
Industrial & Farm Supply Parts  $116.64  
Intermountain Sales Parts  $280.00  
Kimrad Transport LP Parts  $2,147.08  
Lenco West Parts  $71.59  
Leroy A. Romero Cleaning (Hold)  $125.00  
Lyle Signs Signs  $379.48  
Maddox Collections Drug Testing  $60.00  
Monte Vista Cooperative Parts  $230.26  
Myers Brothers Truck Parts  $417.54  
Rocky Mountain Home First Aid  $10.39  
Ryland Industries, Inc. Parts  $162.00  
Staples Business Office Supplies  $104.88  
Valero Marketing Asphalt  $18,499.00  
Valley Equipment Leasing Equipment  $2,385.94  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $143.77  
Wagner Equipment Parts  $55,913.13  
Wex Bank Fuel  $949.34  
Xcel Energy Electric/Gas  $10,937.62  
TOTAL   $117,511.58  
   
American Fidelity July Payroll  $253.70  
American Public Life July Payroll  $65.40  
Community Bank July Payroll  $23,451.02  
Rio Grande County Treasurer July Payroll  $19,058.63  
Security Benefit July Payroll  $30.00  
TOTAL   $42,858.75  
   
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL 
SERVICES 

  

American Fidelity July Payroll  $267.64  
American Public Life July Payroll  $126.30  
Community Bank July Payroll  $34,891.54  
Rio Grande County Treasurer July Payroll  $26,419.03  
Security Benefit July Payroll  $155.00  
TOTAL   $61,859.51  
   
PEST CONTROL   
Allied General Agency Insurance  $2,703.75  
DP AG Services Chemicals  $1,386.01  
Haynie's Inc. Parts  $15.43  
Monte Vista Cooperative Supplies  $2,416.80  
Pro Com Drug Testing  $120.00  
S&S Distribution, Inc. Supplies  $53.55  
San Luis Valley Regional Trash  $22.60  
SLV REC Electric  $80.00  
Valley Publishing Ads  $190.00  
TOTAL   $6,988.14  
   
Century Link Telephone  $89.19  



DP AG Services Chemicals  $1,463.80  
First Bankcard Credit Card  $357.05  
Haynie's Inc. Parts  $19.33  
S&S Distribution, Inc. Parts  $24.00  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $64.12  
TOTAL   $2,017.49  
   
Community Bank July Payroll  $3,106.22  
Rio Grande County Treasurer July Payroll  $1,400.33  
TOTAL   $4,506.55  
   
AIRPORT   
Century Link Telephone 118.27 
TOTAL  118.27 
   
Century Link Telephone  $175.43  
CO Dept. of Pub Health Annual Billing  $185.00  
Colorado Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax  $11.52  
SLV REC Electricity  $410.00  
TOTAL   $781.95  
   
TOURISM   
Chelsea Allington Advertising  $1,989.00  
Creede Arts Council Silver Thread Studio Tour  $500.00  
Del Norte Eco Council Brochure  $754.00  
First Bankcard Credit Card  $205.00  
Master Print & Web Design Web Hosting  $175.00  
Pen Craft Design Company Board Assistant  $400.00  
Texas Monthly Advertising  $2,074.00  
Tourism Intelligence Email  $285.57  
Wolf Creek Ski Area Booth Fee  $691.66  
TOTAL   $7,074.23  
   
PUBLIC HEALTH   
Century Link Telephone  $173.65  
Century Link Telephone  $81.13  
Century Link Telephone  $2.07  
Early Childhood Council Healthy Community Services  $4,530.00  
Early Childhood Council Healthy Community Services  $2,265.00  
Pro Com Drug Testing  $30.00  
Rio Grande County Postage  $328.70  
Rio Grande County EPSDT  $191.55  
Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Medication  $1,035.89  
Staples Business Office Supplies  $317.44  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $53.01  
TOTAL   $9,008.44  
   
Alamosa County Nursing 
Service 

Environmental Health  $2,250.00  

Century Link Telephone  $17.86  
Costilla County Public EPSDT  $2,140.00  



First Bankcard Credit Card  $1,738.30  
Sanofi Pasteur, Inc. Medication  $443.18  
Tri County Senior Citizens Vendor Fee  $25.00  
Verizon Wireless Telephone  $52.91  
TOTAL   $6,667.25  
   
Community Bank July Payroll  $4,308.06  
Rio Grande County Treasurer July Payroll  $5,398.94  
TOTAL   $9,707.00 

 
Ms. Osborn reported that the reel at the airport is fixed.  
 
Ms. Osborn told the Board that after the manager’s meeting on August 19, 2015, there 
will be a meeting to review the possible salary increases for elected officials. 
 
Commissioner Shriver suggested that the Board should inspect the jail since the repairs 
there have been completed. This was scheduled for August 26, 2015. Commissioner 
Shriver also suggested scheduling a work session with the Sheriff at the jail.  
 
At 9:17 a.m., Marty Asplin, Co-Director, Upper Rio Grande Economic Development 
Council, was present to discuss a possible Brownfield Foundation Grant for the vacant 
nursing home in Del Norte. This grant is from the Environmental Protection agency and 
provides for direct funding for Brownfield’s assessment, cleanup, revolving loans, and 
environmental job training. Mr. Asplin attended a meeting in La Junta where the nursing 
home property was discussed. Mr. Asplin explained that the old nursing home sits on 
seven acres within the County. The Colorado Department of Public Health and 
Environment, along with Kansas State can push the current owner of the nursing home 
for Phase One (and perhaps Phase Two) inspection of the property with a Brownfield 
Grant. In order to apply for this grant, Mr. Asplin explained that he needs to represent a 
government agency. Commissioner Shriver asked why the County Commissioners 
would need to be involved, and Mr. Asplin reiterated that in order to apply for the grant 
as a member of URGED, he needs to represent a government agency. He said that in 
order to sell the property, potential buyers need to know what the environmental 
problems with the building and the property are (asbestos, lead, etc.). He explained that 
there would be no cost for doing the environmental testing. Once the issues are 
determined, grants can be applied for to fix the issues. The consensus of the Board was 
to move forward with the project. Mr. Asplin said that potential uses of the nursing home 
property might include a motel, housing for veterans, or a park. Commissioner Bricker 
noted that the location of the property is a gateway to the Town. There was consensus 
from the Board to support the grant request. 
 
At 9:25 a.m., David Mahonee, 12th Judicial District Attorney, was present to update the 
Board. Mr. Mahonee said that the District Attorney’s office had received an Edward 
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant, which included in its budget 10 to 20 percent 
to fund the salaries of five deputies. The office has applied for the grant again, and has 
received enough funding for a sixth deputy (10 percent will be paid in the second year of 
the grant); funds are available in October 2015. The grant will also be used to start a 



drug court and a DUI court. The DA’s office is running a pilot program for restorative 
justice in the State and it is going well. Juveniles who commit offenses are referred to 
the restorative justice liaison before they are filed against. If they participate in the 
program, no charges are recorded on their permanent records. 
 
Mr. Mahonee explained that the number of juvenile crimes has gone down because of 
this program. He said that most of the participants successfully complete the program. 
He noted that this program is very helpful in situations where families are unavailable to 
help the juveniles. Mr. Mahonee commented that the media, social media, movies, etc., 
are responsible for much of the lack of respect seen in juvenile offenders. 
 
Mr. Mahonee reported that there are no homicide cases in Rio Grande County at this 
time. 
 
Commissioner Shriver asked if the DA’s facilities are adequate. Mr. Mahonee 
responded that the office has no room for the new deputy, and invited the Board to visit 
the office any time. 
 
Mr. Mahonee pointed out the discrepancy between salaries in the Public Defender’s 
office and the salaries in the DA’s office. The staff in the Public Defender’s office 
receives better benefits and higher salaries. Chairman Davie commented that the 
District Attorney should be appointed rather than elected. Mr. Mahonee said that the 
State pays 80 percent of the DA’s salary and the County pays ten percent. He noted 
that the deputy staff is solid, but because of the lower wages and benefits, he is 
concerned that some staff is considering moving. Better benefits would help retain good 
staff. He also noted that term limits cause concern for the staff: when a new District 
Attorney is elected, the staff worries about its security. 
 
Commissioner Shriver noted that when planning the County budget, space 
considerations always come up with regard to the amount the County pays for District 
Attorney office space. Mr. Mahonee said that the new deputy is currently housed in the 
Rio Grande County courthouse. He noted that the new Justice Center in Alamosa will 
not provide space for the District Attorney staff. Commissioner Shriver commented that 
the Justice Center primarily benefits Alamosa County. Mr. Mahonee responded that the 
Valley benefits from programs such as the restorative justice and drug court programs. 
 
Mr. Mahonee commented that the DA’s office has no budget for law books, so if rent is 
charged for staff space, the office would not be able to afford that either. Commissioner 
Shriver suggested that an in-kind contribution for space might be possible. 
 
Mr. Mahonee noted that a source of funding might be marijuana-grow operations. He 
said that Costilla County has concerns but is working on solving problems with this 
business. While it is not a problem for Rio Grande County at this time, Mr. Mahonee 
noted that there is quite a bit of money to be made from it, but it needs to be controlled. 
 



At 9: 52 a.m., Ms. Osborn reported that the Commissioners would attend the following 
meetings: 
 

 Colorado Department of Human Services Summer Planning Tour, Tuesday, 
August 4, 2015, 1:30 p.m., Alamosa 

 San Luis Valley Transportation Planning Region, Thursday, August 6, 2015, 
10:30 a.m., Alamosa 

 Rio Grande/Saguache County 4-H Council’s Roast Beef Dinner, August 7, 2015, 
4:30-7:00 p.m., Ski Hi Park, Monte Vista 

 
Ms. Osborn reported that at the Rio Grande County Museum meeting August 4, 2015, 
the phone bill was discussed and the County was asked to pay it. It was noted that the 
bill is usually small, and that the Museum will likely cancel its 800 number. 
Commissioner Shriver moved that the County start paying the Museum phone bill. 
Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested a signature for the Cooperative Wildfire Protection Agreement. 
The agreement facilitates the coordination and exchange of personnel, equipment, 
supplies, services, and funds among the parties in sustaining and implementing wildfire 
management activities. Concern was expressed at the overhead fee charged to the 
County and Sheriff could amount to 13 percent of the total amount billed to the County 
for the cost of a fire. Commissioner Bricker moved to sign the agreement. 
Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the motion carried. The Rio Grande 
County Sheriff will also sign the agreement. 
 
Ms. Osborn asked the Board to ratify the Board of Equalization Findings and Order for 
Safeway Stores, Inc. (#2810), appealing the County Assessor’s valuation (Schedule 
16180000). Safeway did not provide sufficient documentation and its appeal was 
denied. The findings and order was not signed because its wording was not accurate. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested a signature for the 2015 Legislative Committee Member 
Appointment. The appointment must be made by September 14, 2015. The Legislative 
Committee meeting will be October 2, 2015. Chairman Davie will attend the meeting 
and signed the letter. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a letter from Reuben “Ben” Mestas, Director, Colorado Division 
of Veterans Affairs, announcing that the Colorado General Assembly has increased the 
dollar amount paid to Colorado Counties in support of their County Veterans Service 
Officers. Funds will be distributed twice a year to counties with full time Service Officers 
or part time Service Officers at a rate of $1,380.00 per month (full time) or $690.00 (part 
time) paid twice a year in January and July. Rio Grande County’s County Veterans 
Service Officer is a part time position. The county pays the majority of the budget, 
amounting to $18,000.00 per year for 20 hours per month. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a letter from Congressman Scott Tipton and United States 
Senator Cory Gardner regarding the anticipated finalization of a Critical Habitat Rule for 



the Western Distinct Population Segment of the Yellow-billed Cuckoo. The letter urges 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to refrain from designating any critical habitat in 
Colorado. Ms. Osborn told the Board that there will be meeting on the subject at the Rio 
Grande Water Conservation District office on August 11, 2015, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Other upcoming meetings include: 
 

 Airport Board meeting, August 11, 2015, at 5:00 p.m. 

 Small Communities Workshop, August 13, 2015. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented the Rio Grande County Sheriff’s meal log for July 2015: 
 

Inmate Meals: 2,763 
Cook Meals:       32 
Jailer Meals:     495 
Office Meals:     115 
TOTAL:  3,405 
 
Food cost:  $5,714.89 
Cost per meal:          1.67 
Average cost for six months: $1.28 

 
Ms. Osborn reported that the sales tax report from the airport has been filed, and total 
sales in July equaled $5,000.00. The reel is fixed. 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that a DRG grant in the amount of $5,000.00 has been approved 
for building the kiosk at Summitville. 
 
Ms. Osborn brought up the Underfunded Courthouse Grant, and the Board discussed 
the difficulties in finding out what the actual costs are for housing the District Attorney’s 
staff. The costs are not accounted for in terms of real dollars. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a contract from the Department of Social Services regarding 
home care allowance and adult foster care. Commissioner Bricker moved to sign this 
single entry point contract. Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the motion 
carried. 
 
At 10:15 a.m., Bill Dunn, County Attorney, was present to update the Board. He noted a 
discrepancy in the wording in the Findings and Order for Safeway Stores’ appeal to the 
Board of Equalization. 
 
Mr. Dunn reported that Carolyn Kloberdanz met with him on August 3, 2015. He 
reported telling Ms. Kloberdanz that her answer needed to be filed with the court clerk, 
rather than with the Land Use Supervisor. Mr. Dunn does not believe an answer has 
been filed at this time. He explained to Ms. Kloberdanz the Land Use Department’s 
request that she move her camper and also pointed out that this issue has been going 



on for five years. Ms. Kloberdanz said that someone might be building a house on the 
property. Mr. Dunn pointed out that this would require a septic system. He also told her 
that, according to Rio Grande County zoning laws, campers need to be parked in 
appropriate recreational vehicle parks. 
 
The Wildfire Protection Agreement was brought up, concerning the possibility of 
Division of Fire Prevention and Control charging the Sheriff and the County a 13 percent 
overhead cost. The Board asked if this was a surcharge over the costs of an actual fire. 
Ms. Osborn said that the contract can be held until this is clarified. Commissioner 
Shriver said she doubted if this charge could be negotiated and that without this 
contract the County might not qualify for Federal fire funds. 
 
Mr. Dunn suggested an item for the airport board meeting. He reported that he had 
talked to David Zimmer, who wants to build a hangar at the airport with sliding doors. 
Mr. Dunn wondered if the advisory board should put limits on building hangars. 
Commissioner Bricker noted that there are no covenants at the airport, yet. Ms. Osborn 
said that covenants could become part of the lease agreements. Ms. Osborn said that 
Mr. Zimmer is no longer interested in building his hangar because he had discovered 
that the building would be taxed at a commercial rate. Commissioner Shriver said that 
there needs to be a process for any new building at the airport. Ms. Osborn suggested 
making this issue a topic for the upcoming work session with the airport board. Ms. 
Osborn said that she would find more information regarding covenants. It was 
suggested that perhaps the County could build, then lease, hangars. 
 
Ms. Osborn asked Mr. Dunn if he had any recollection as to whether a plat had been 
recorded for airport lots 24 through 27. Mr. Dunn said that he did not know. A current 
map of the area shows no recording information. It was noted that the Commissioners 
need to accept the map, then the Clerk and Recorder can record it. Commissioner 
Shriver said that the plat needs to be recorded (if needed, Suzanne Benton can be 
called for information), and Russell Surveyors can then do an improvement map. She 
noted that it might cost a little, but that it is worth the expense to clean up this issue.  
 
Mr. Dunn reported that he participated in a Property Tax Advisory Group webinar and 
learned some good information. 
 
At 10:46 a.m., Adam Moore, District Forester, Colorado State Forest Service, was 
present to discuss the purchase of a chipper with the Board. He thanked the Board for 
its support of Alamo Park. Mr. Moore explained that using a wood chipper is a 
convenient way for residents to dispose of fire mitigation materials. A grant for 50 
percent of the cost has been applied for (the total cost of the chipper is $24,500.00). 
With a contribution of $6,125.00 from Rio Grande County, the chipper would be paid for. 
The grant includes an education component regarding fire mitigation and evacuation, 
and individuals or communities will be able to meet with the South Fork Fire Department 
or the Forest Service to get input on fire mitigation.  
 



Commissioner Shriver expressed concern about the maintenance of the chipper, 
insurance, and the details of the program. Mr. Moore said that Tyler Off is interested in 
donating space at the South Fork Fire Department. The rent for the chipper would be 
$5.00 per use hour, and these funds would be used to maintain the chipper. (The 
chipper comes with an hour meter.) Mr. Moore explained that the chipper could be 
moved from facility to facility in different areas of the County. He explained the 
mechanism for use: an individual would pick up the chipper, agree to the rental terms, 
use the chipper, and then check it back in. Commissioner Bricker asked who would be 
liable if the user had an accident using the chipper or if damage to the chipper occurred. 
Mr. Moore responded that perhaps a waiver could be included in the use agreement. 
Commissioner Shriver asked if the owner of the chipper would be Rio Grande County or 
the South Fork Fire Department. Commissioner Bricker asked how the South Fork Fire 
Department feels about this project. Mr. Moore responded that it is enthusiastic. 
Commissioner Shriver asked if the County could buy the chipper and then donate it to 
South Fork. Commissioner Bricker pointed out that there are other places beyond South 
Fork where fire mitigation needs to be done. Mr. Moore responded that he would talk to 
Mr. Off. Ms. Osborn said she would talk to the County’s insurance company. 
 
Mr. Moore said that in some cases the fire department would do the actual chipping, 
and that some nonprofit organizations, such as the Youth Conservation Corps, might 
use the chipper. He said that he would research liability issues. 
 
At 12:10 p.m., Jacob Kuijper, Colorado County Officials & Employees Retirement 
Association, was present to present the 2015 Executive Director Plan Review. Kirsty 
Dennis, Human Resources, was also present. According to Mr. Kuijper, the plan 
highlights are: 
 

 Fee waiver in 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, and in the third quarter of 2015 

 Fund expense ratio reductions 

 $300,000.00 fee cap in 2007, reduced to $200,000.00 in 2011, reduced again to 
$175,000.00 on July 1, 2014. 

 A Roth 457 option was added in 2011. 
 
Mr. Kuijper explained that fund investments are made in institutional rather than in retail 
sectors, which provide the lowest expense ratio. He explained that the mutual funds are 
reviewed quarterly, and that investments look good for the second quarter of 2015. Mr. 
Kuijper said the CCOERA works on a diversified portfolio approach. Forfeitures, caused 
when employees leave before they are fully vested in the program, come back to the 
County.  
 
At 1:00 p.m., the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Doug Davie, Chairman     Mona Syring, Clerk and Recorder 



 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ PROCEEDINGS 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    ss 
County of Rio Grande ) 
 
The Board of Rio Grande County Commissioners met in regular session on 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015. Members present were Chairman Doug Davie, 
Commissioner Karla Shriver, Commissioner Pam Bricker, Financial Officer Lori 
McGraw, County Administrator Carol Osborn, and Clerk of the Board Mona Syring.  
 
At 9:00 a.m., Chairman Davie called the meeting to order. Commissioner Shriver led the 
opening prayer. The Pledge of Allegiance was said. Commissioner Bricker moved to 
accept the agenda with the addition of petitions of abatement. Commissioner Shriver 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. Commissioner Shriver moved to accept 
the minutes from the August 5, 2015, meeting with changes. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. Chairman Davie asked if there were any 
public comments and there were none. 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that the airport board meeting, August 11, 2015, went well. Two 
work sessions with the Board of County Commissioners have been planned: 
 
• September 2, 2015, 1:30; budget review 
• October 14, 2015, 1:30; review strategic plan 
 
Ms. Osborn noted that the airport board is partially responsible for the airport budget 
and that she has offered her assistance in preparing it. She also noted that the strategic 
plan will cover future plans for the airport. 
 
Ms. Osborn said that a courtesy car is now available at the airport. The car belongs to 
Vern McCallister, and a system for picking up the key needs to be set up. Ms. Osborn 
noted that the County does not carry the insurance on this car, and suggested a 
contract or a Memorandum of Understanding with Mr. McCallister regarding possible 
liability. The consensus of the Board was to enter into a simple MOU with Mr. 
McCallister so that the arrangement is clear and not confusing. 
 
Ms. Osborn said that she would review the plat map of airport lots 24 through 27, and 
the master plan for the airport. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a letter of support for the DNR Wildfire Risk Reduction project at 
Alamo Park for signature. Chairman Davie signed the letter. 
 
At 9:10 a.m., Patrick Sullivan, Road and Bridge Supervisor, was present to update the 
Board. He presented a letter from Bob and Carol Pastore, 0536 Swede Lane, Monte 
Vista, requesting that a flashing light be installed at the intersection of Swede Lane and 



County Road 3 West (Stoeber Lane). Chairman Davie asked Mr. Sullivan why this 
intersection was different from others. Mr. Sullivan reported that he spoke to Colorado 
State Patrol and that there have been only two major accidents at this intersection 
between 2012 and the present (neither accident involved fatalities). Mr. Sullivan 
acknowledged that there is a blind area near the Clare house on the southwest corner 
of the intersection and that there is a tree on Terry LePlatt’s ditch that blocks the stop 
sign. Mr. Sullivan spoke to Mr. LePlatt and Mr. LePlatt is willing to take the tree out. 
 
Mr. Sullivan said that crews are still working on installing flashing lights at the 
intersections of County Road 3 East and County Roads 7 North and 9 North. He said 
there is probably more traffic at these intersections than there is on Swede Lane, 
especially during harvest and planting seasons. He acknowledged that Swede Lane is a 
high risk road and that people often run the stop sign at the intersection of County Road 
3 West. He said that CSP has recently installed a radar unit on Swede Lane, which also 
counts cars using the road. However, he said that the Road and Bridge Department is 
approximately $4000.00 over budget on traffic signs now. Commissioner Shriver 
suggested waiting until next year to improve the intersection, noting that traffic needs to 
be studied. Mr. Sullivan suggested that a possible goal to be explored would be to 
improve an intersection every year in the future. He noted that one sign costs $970.00, 
and suggested reviewing the entire safety program, which would include rumble strips 
and signage. He noted that rumble strips and signs could be placed at this intersection 
now, but signs could not. 
 
The consensus of the Board was to write a letter to the Pastores; Mr. Sullivan said he 
would speak to them directly. 
 
Chairman Davie asked about weed cutting along County roads. Mr. Sullivan said crews 
were working on it, adding that several agricultural producers were helping. 
 
Commissioner Bricker asked Mr. Sullivan about the spotlights at the airport, which are 
timed to go on when the runway lights go on. She said that someone at the airport 
board meeting complained that the spotlights were staying on all night. Mr. Sullivan 
suggested conveying the message to the airport personnel to leave the electrical box 
alone. Mr. Sullivan said that the floodlights could be disconnected and that this would 
not affect the beacons; it is not a safety issue. The consensus of the Board was to 
disconnect the floodlights, which will require an electrician, as a test; maybe there is 
another way to handle these lights. 
 
Commissioner Bricker noted another complaint that the fuel reel is rewinding too 
quickly. Mr. Sullivan said the reel cannot be locked at a specific rewinding speed. He 
suggested putting a ball on the hose that would stop the nozzle from rewinding too fast. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested a sign with directions to the airport restroom be created. Mr. 
Sullivan noted that it should be reflective, and said he would put one up. 
 



Commissioner Shriver passed on compliments on the work of the Road and Bridge 
Department. 
 
Mr. Sullivan reported that the leased graders are working well; the third grader is in and 
is also working well. He reported that a new truck will be ordered and will likely be a 
2016 model. 
 
Commissioner Shriver asked if it was time to blow out the wash rack at Ski Hi Park, now 
that the 4-H Fair is over. Mr. Sullivan agreed. He reported that crews built a temporary 
dock for the fair on the northwest corner of the building that was used for unloading 
livestock trailers. He said that fair personnel liked it. Mr. Sullivan suggested designing a 
permanent dock, which could be covered with gravel when not in use, and uncovered 
when it was needed. He said it might be possible to get the concrete donated for this 
project, and that the department would try to finish the dock before winter. The 
consensus of the Board was to approve exploring this project. 
 
Mr. Sullivan reported on a bill from Century Link for damage caused a year ago when 
the Road and Bridge Department cut a line twice in the same day. The original bill of 
$702.00 has been increased to $871.00. He also reported that a Century Link contractor 
recently bored through a culvert on Lariat Road; 17 feet of the culvert had to be 
replaced and the line had to be reburied, at a cost billed to Century Link of $4,500.00. 
Mr. Sullivan will continue to negotiate the payment of these bills. 
 
Ms. Osborn told Mr. Sullivan about the upcoming work session with the airport board on 
October 14, 2015. Mr. Sullivan said he would show the airport manager how to handle 
the lights. 
 
Mr. Sullivan asked Ms. Osborn about the recent meeting with San Luis Valley Rural 
Electric regarding the Ciello project. He acknowledged the difficulties of working on 
Beaver Mountain, and noted that as long as the Ciello contractor is trying to work within 
regulations regarding how deep lines must be buried and contacts the Road and Bridge 
Department when there is a problem, the project should go smoothly. Situations can be 
handled individually. He said Ciello is working on laying lines from County Road 27 to 
Pintada in Monte Vista. He said there are specific issues to work out on this part of the 
project. 
 
Mr. Sullivan said that there is an open position in the department and there is a potential 
candidate—a previous employee, who has moved back to the area. If hired, this person 
would need no training, is already familiar with the area, and has his CDL paperwork. 
While the consensus of the Board was to approve this hire, it was made clear that the 
formal hiring process (running ads, holding interviews, etc.) must be completed. Ms. 
Osborn suggested hiring the person on an interim basis, until the hiring process was 
complete. Mr. Sullivan agreed. 
 
Rose Vanderpool, Land Use Supervisor, was present to discuss the vacation of a road 
with Mr. Sullivan. Jerry Ellenberger has requested that a portion of Shirley Road in 



Upper Alpine No. 3, be vacated. Ms. Vanderpool informed Mr. Ellenberger that this was 
not possible, due to other sites in the area needing access to the road. Mr. Sullivan 
agreed. 
 
Proposed work by the Road and Bridge Department includes: 
 
• Completing the County Road 4 North paving project. 
• Using remaining asphalt oil to fill wheel ruts on County Roads 7 North and 3 
East. 
• Skin patching, which adds five years of life to asphalt. 
• Completing another round of grading prior to harvest. 
 
At 10:00 a.m., James E. Bradley and Rose Vanderpool, Land Use Supervisor, were 
present to discuss an exempt division of land. Iris Wells was also present. Ms. 
Vanderpool explained that this is the first request for this division. Mr. Bradley wants to 
divide the southwest corner of the northwest quarter, which is located at County Road 6 
West and County Road 7 North, where Mr. Bradley wants to build a house. Ms. 
Vanderpool said that property owners in the area were notified and there were no 
questions. Ms. Wells, asked to be heard and was sworn in. Ms. Wells asked for 
clarification as to where the division of land would be and asked if Mr. Bradley was 
planning to build something there. Ms. Vanderpool clarified the location and said that 
Mr. Bradley planned to build a house. Ms. Wells expressed concern about water 
availability. She said there are sprinklers to the east and west of her property, and also 
expressed concern about the well Mr. Bradley’s son abandoned because of sandy 
conditions. Ms. Wells said that another well in the area would dry up her property. She 
also said she understood that Mr. Bradley’s son was selling water at his property 
located at County Road 6 West and County Road 6 North.  
 
Mr. Bradley said that his son is not selling water, but is selling his farm with water rights. 
Mr. Bradley said that wells on the property are inactive. He said he contacted the Water 
Division and was told he could put in a well for the house; any other water to be used 
would have to be hauled in. 
 
Commissioner Bricker moved to approve the exempt division of land. Commissioner 
Shriver said that while she appreciated Ms. Wells’s concerns, she seconded the motion 
and the motion carried with the conditions that the property be surveyed, and access 
agreements be noted on the survey. These conditions have to be satisfied before the 
division of land can be finalized. Ms. Vanderpool said that no comments had been 
received from the Farmers Union Canal. Mr. Bradley assured the Board that if a fence is 
erected, there will be an easement for the canal. 
 
At 10:15 a.m., Ms. Vanderpool informed the Board that the 70-foot cell tower at the 
Monte Vista Co-op was supposed to come down when the 150-foot tower was 
completed. She said the Co-op wants to keep the 70-foot tower and has requested a 
lease addendum in order to do so. Commissioner Bricker asked why the Co-op wants to 
keep the tower. Ms. Vanderpool said she did not ask, but told the Co-op it was in 



violation of the current conditional use permit. She said the Co-op will have to complete 
a minor lease amendment in order to keep the 70-foot tower. 
 
Ms. Vanderpool reported that Carolyn Kloberdanz’s camper has not been on her 
property for two or three days, but that Ms. Kloberdanz has been in the cabin and the 
gate to the property has been locked. Ms. Vanderpool has received complaints from 
Raymond Hurtado that there is no proper septic system on the property and that Ms. 
Kloberdanz is keeping vicious dogs that have attacked his chickens. (Mr. Hurtado wants 
compensation for his chickens.)  
 
Mr. Dunn said the deadline for Ms. Kloberdanz to file her answer with the court has not 
yet passed. When the deadline has passed, he will ask the court for a hearing, ordering 
her to not live on the property. Once that order is received, the Sheriff can be called to 
remove her. Mr. Dunn will check on the deadline and let Ms. Vanderpool know. 
 
At 10:25 a.m., Bill Dunn, County Attorney, was present to update the Board. He 
reported that he has not received a response from Safeway regarding its Board of 
Equalization denial. 
 
Ms. Osborn informed Mr. Dunn about the courtesy car arrangement at the airport, 
asking if there should be an MOU between Mr. McCallister and the airport regarding 
liability. Mr. Dunn said that Mr. McCallister was allowing the use of his vehicle, but 
wondered if there was an accident if the County could be sued. Mr. Dunn did not think 
the County would be directly liable. Commissioner Bricker said an MOU was needed. 
Commissioner Shriver agreed, saying the agreement could be a very simple statement, 
describing who owns the car, that the owner carries the insurance, and that the County 
is not liable for any accidents that might occur. Mr. Dunn noted that the insurance 
situation might change when Mr. McCallister’s insurance premium is due. He said he 
would draft a simple MOU and that he would also check with Mr. McCallister to make 
sure that the current insurance allows people other than the owner to drive the car. 
 
At 10:40 a.m., Chairman Davie asked Ms. Osborn when the next meeting with the Town 
of Monte Vista is scheduled. She responded that the meeting with the Town of Del 
Norte is Monday, August 17, 2015, but no meeting has been scheduled with Monte 
Vista. Chairman Davie said that the Monte Vista enforcement officer will not allow the 
County to spray weeds in Monte Vista. Ms. Osborn said she would set up a meeting. 
 
Chairman Davie said that the Monte Vista Fire District has been sent a statement for 
dispatch, but that the Fire District will not put it on the Monte Vista City Council agenda. 
(There is a court order for Monte Vista to pay the dispatch bill.) He asked Ms. Osborn to 
call the Monte Vista City Clerk. Ms. Osborn said she would get the item on the City 
Council’s agenda, as well as the Weed Board. 
 
Ms. Osborn informed the Board that Gene Farish, City Attorney for the towns of Del 
Norte and South Fork, has requested to be on the mailing list for the County Master 
Plan. 



 
Ms. Osborn presented an email from Adam Moore, Alamosa District Forester, regarding 
the chipper to be purchased for disposal of fire mitigation materials. His email states 
that the South Fork Fire Department is interested in running the program and that the 
Fire Department is committed to making sure regular maintenance occurs. The email 
states that the South Fork Fire Department has the resources to run a smooth check-
in/check-out system, and will allow anyone in the County to use the chipper. The Fire 
Department also has a $20 million umbrella insurance policy, and it is checking to see if 
this insurance will cover the chipper rental program. Ms. Osborn said she would clarify 
the cost of the chipper and the County’s contribution before an MOU is drawn up. 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that Tobin and Associates has done penetration tests in June and 
July, and the tests have come back clean. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested a signature on the Agreement for Cooperative Wildfire 
Protection. She explained that the 13 percent fee was an administrative fee for billing 
coordination between the various fire departments and agencies involved in a fire. While 
there was concern that the fee was too high, the consensus of the Board was that it had 
no choice but to sign the agreement. The contract was signed by Chairman Davie and 
Clerk Mona Syring. Commissioner Shriver noted that Ms. McGraw can get training 
online regarding how to manage these sorts of billings. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented the County Veterans Service Officers Monthly report for July 
2015. Commissioner Shriver moved to approve the report. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Osborn informed the Board that there will be a Transportation Legislation Review 
Committee Visit Wednesday, September 23, 2015, at approximately 2:00-3:00 p.m., in 
Alamosa. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented two requests for tax abatement: 
 
• $302.14, Joshua Lopez (from 2014) 
• $300.74, Joshua Lopez (from 2013) 
 
Mr. Lopez should have been paying the residential tax rate in these years. 
Commissioner Bricker moved to approve the tax abatements. Commissioner Shriver 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
At 11:00 a.m., Rose Vanderpool, Land Use Supervisor, was present to discuss the Rio 
Grande County Master Plan. Also present were Jennifer Henninger and Rick 
Goncalves, RG and Associates, LLC; Dwight Freeman, Rio Grande County Planning 
Commission; Bernadette Martinez, Town of Del Norte; Tom Acre, Interim Administrator 
of the Town of South Fork; Forest Neurberg, City of Monte Vista; Gene Farish, City 
Attorney for Del Norte and South Fork; and Marty Asplin, Co-Director, Upper Rio 
Grande Economic Development Council. 



 
Ms. Henninger said that RG and Associates was looking forward to the process of 
creating the Rio Grande County Master Plan. 
 
Ms. Henninger explained that a Master Plan website has been developed to help garner 
comments from the public. A survey will be developed and approved by each 
community, and will be posted on the website. There will be general questions 
regarding the Master Plan, as well as questions specific to each community. Draft plans 
will be posted on the website after they are approved. Ads will be placed in local 
newspapers directing people to the website, and links will be provided on the County 
and city websites, as well as school district websites. 
 
Along with a community open house meeting, RG and Associates will conduct meetings 
with: 
 
• Business and property owners from each community 
• Each city and the County 
• High school students (seniors from government classes) 
 
Stakeholders for the business and property owners meetings were identified:  
 
FROM EACH COMMUNITY 
• High school students 
• Churches 
• Business owners 
• Town/city board members 
• Town/city staff 
• Chambers of Commerce 
• Realtors 
• Historical societies 
• Large landowners 
• Fire districts 
• Service groups 
• Agriculture (through Colorado Potato Administrative Council and the Cattleman’s 
Association) 
• Rio Grande Hospital 
• Greater South Fork Community Foundation 
 
FROM THE REGION/COUNTY 
• Rio Grande County Museum 
• San Luis Valley Research Center 
• San Luis Valley GIS Authority 
• San Luis Valley Water Conservancy District 
• San Luis Valley Development Resources Group 
• Rio Grande Tourism Board 
• DOLA Regional Manager 



• RWEACT 
• Rio Grande Headwaters Land Trust 
• US Forest Service 
• Colorado Division of Wildlife 
• BLM 
• Airport authorities 
• Upper Rio Grande Economic Development Council 
• SLV GO (trails master plan) 
 
Mr. Acre expressed concern about obtaining input from seasonal residents. He said 
many seasonal residents are leaving now, so getting a survey together to distribute at 
recreational vehicle parks would be helpful. He said town hall meetings can be 
organized quickly in South Fork. Ms. Henninger said a basic questionnaire has been 
developed and she will get copies to Mr. Acre next week. 
 
It was suggested that articles about the Master Plan be run in the South Fork Tines, the 
San Luis Valley Rural Electric Cooperative newsletter, the Monte Vista Co-op 
newsletter, and that information also be included in sanitation bills, where available. 
 
The objectives for creating the Master Plan were discussed: 
 
1. Conduct sessions with a representative consisting of one elected official and/or 
staff representative from each of the participating jurisdictions, one representative from 
the planning commission, and one representative from the Board of Adjustment. 
2. Provide a broad-based participation plan to solicit input throughout the update 
process. 
3. Review the current plan and subsequent updates and identify the relevant 
sections that should remain, be revised, or be removed. The review should include 
recognition of deficiencies of the current plan and identification of elements that should 
be incorporated in the new plan. 
4. The plan will involve three sets of public workshops, held on consecutive days 
with each community and the County. 
5. A website for public review of plan information will be created. The website will 
be up next week. 
6. RG and Associates will review relevant planning documents from the County, Del 
Note, South Fork, and Monte Vista. The project bibliography, population, housing, and 
economic data will be updated. 
7. Conduct development capacity analysis utilizing land mass by acreage, zoning, 
serviceability, and land use designations to produce projected growth scenarios for 
South Fork, Del Note, Monte Vista, and the County. 
8. Incorporate current planning documents from all municipalities and the County 
into the land use policy analysis. 
9. Define a clear direction of how and where development should occur over the 
next 10, 15, and 20 years. 
10. Update the plan framework, vision, goals, policies, and actions for each 
jurisdiction. 



11. Prepare a 2015 Rio Grande County Comprehensive Plan including the elements 
of Rio Grande County, Del Norte, South Fork, and Monte Vista. 
12. RG and Associates will attend a public hearing before the Rio Grande Planning 
Commission and a public hearing before the Board of Rio Grande County 
Commissioners to present the Master Plan. Meetings will be scheduled in December 
and January. 
13. On completion and adoption of the Comprehensive plan, one electronic copy will 
be provided with 15 copies. 
 
Outreach meetings were scheduled. RG and Associates will be in each community for a 
full day in order to hold meetings with various stakeholders: 
 
• September 14, 2015 – County and regional stakeholders 
• September 15, 2015 – Monte Vista 
• September 16, 2015 – Del Norte 
• September 17, 2015 – South Fork 
 
It was pointed out that meetings in September might be difficult for people who are 
involved with harvest to attend. 
 
A second round of evening meetings will be held in the evenings to review the draft 
plan: 
 
• November 17, 2015 – Monte Vista 
• November 18, 2015 – Del Norte 
• November 19, 2015 – South Fork 
 
A two-week approval time will be given, then comments will be added to the draft, and 
the draft will be posted online. 
 
The goal for adopting the plan is January 2016. 
 
Ms. Henninger asked if the Rio Grande Watershed Emergency Action Team Hazard 
Mitigation Plan had to be included in full in the Master Plan, or if it could be referenced. 
Ms. Osborn said it could be referenced. Other planning documents will be included as 
needed by each community. Capital improvement master plans should also be included. 
Plans from the Rio Grande Water Conservancy District and the San Luis Valley 
Conservancy District should be included so that water issues are understood. 
 
At 12:10 p.m., the meeting was adjourned. 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Doug Davie, Chairman     Mona Syring, Clerk and Recorder 
 



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ PROCEEDINGS 
 
State of Colorado  ) 
    ss 
County of Rio Grande ) 
 
The Board of Rio Grande County Commissioners met in regular session on 
Wednesday, August 26, 2015. Members present were Chairman Doug Davie, 
Commissioner Karla Shriver, Commissioner Pam Bricker, Financial Officer Lori 
McGraw, County Administrator Carol Osborn, and Clerk of the Board Mona Syring.  
 
At 9:00 a.m., Chairman Davie called the meeting to order. Commissioner Bricker led the 
opening prayer. The Pledge of Allegiance was said. Commissioner Bricker moved to 
accept the agenda as presented. Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the 
motion carried. Commissioner Shriver moved to accept the minutes from the August 12, 
2015, meeting with changes. Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the 
motion carried.  
 
Payroll was presented. Commissioner Shriver moved to approve the payroll, with a 
concern noted about the overtime at the Sheriff’s office. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried.  
 
MONTHLY PAYROLL 
 
County General: $164,805.40 
Road and Bridge: $  60,458.50 
DSS:   $  97,521.21 
Pest Control:  $    9,962.29 
Public Health: $  12,756.54 
TOTAL:  $345,503.94 
 
At 9:05 a.m., Chairman Davie asked if there were any public comments. Jack Martz and 
Larry Martz were present to discuss extending the taxiway at Sundance Landing. They 
acknowledged receiving a letter from County Attorney, Bill Dunn, stating that the Board 
was studying the situation. Ms. Osborn noted that re-engineering would have to be done 
to connect the taxiway to the existing runway. Commissioner Shriver noted that it had 
been determined that if the Martzes want to extend the taxiway, they may do that, but 
that it is not the County’s responsibility. Ms. Osborn noted that this determination was 
made at the July 1, 2015, meeting of the County Commissioners. The Martzes contend 
that the taxiway is on County property and is no longer being used as a road, as it was 
17 years ago. They requested that the County blade the road so that it will be in the 
same condition as it was before it “was torn up.” Chairman Davie said the Board will talk 
to the airport advisory board and will respond to the Martzes. Rose Vanderpool, Land 
Use Supervisor, was called in to review the plat map of Sundance Landing. She noted 
that the road is not on County property, and that the approval of the plat says that it is 



the Martzes’ responsibility to extend the taxiway. She further noted that the County 
approved the plat, but did not approve the taxiway. 
 
At 9:20 a.m., Commissioner Bricker moved to adjourn the meeting to the Board of the 
Department of Social Services. Commissioner Shriver seconded the motion and the 
motion carried. 
 
At 10:04 a.m., the Board meeting of County Commissioners was reconvened. Emily 
Brown, Public Health Director, was present to update the Board. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that scheduling needs to be arranged to provide hepatitis shots to 
Sheriff’s deputies. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that details are being worked out to allow higher level nursing 
students from Adams State University to administer medications at the jail. These 
students want new projects; annual training would be held at the Sheriff’s office. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that the Rio Grande County Department of Public Health and the 
Costilla County Public Health Department are working out the budget for the Health 
Coalition Grant, which will be awarded to Costilla County soon (possibly by October 1, 
2015). These funds are linked to tobacco funds. 
 
RGCPH will be distributing communications at community drug meetings. Ms. Brown 
will attend Rural Philanthropy Days to understand available funding opportunities for the 
drug task force. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that the Office of Behavioral Health grant did not come through, so 
Rio Grande Prevention Partners is restructuring in terms of rotating the organization of 
meetings. There may be a meeting in October. 
 
The generator is up and running. Ms. Brown thanked the Board for its help in getting 
this project finished. 
 
Ms. Brown is investigating mini grants that would help pay for Automated External 
Defibrillators. She has received requests for four additional units; the County currently 
has six units. It was agreed that AEDs were needed for certain vehicles (Road and 
Bridge and Sheriff’s vehicles). Ms. Brown said that the batteries for the units cost 
approximately $200.00 each. Ms. Brown suggested that training on how to use the 
AEDs be conducted, along with CPR training. She said that the Colorado State Patrol 
and/or Red Cross could conduct these trainings. It was suggested that this be 
discussed at a managers’ meeting, along with where the funds for the units would be 
found. It was also suggested that it might be possible to obtain an El Pomar grant for 
the new units. 
 



Ms. Osborn suggested reviewing the security plan for the Court at the same managers’ 
meeting. Cameras are in place, the plan is being formulated, and AEDs could be made 
part of the plan. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that the Health Care Coalitions would be completing a joint risk 
assessment, planning a vulnerable population outreach meeting, and working to recruit 
missing partnerships. Missing partnerships include, for instance, long-term care 
agencies and oxygen companies. The Health Care Coalitions currently include 
emergency response agencies, such as hospitals, DSS, emergency medical 
technicians, ambulance agencies, etc. 
 
Ms. Brown informed the Board that a regional functional exercise was being planned for 
October 21, 2015, with pneumonic plague as the emergency issue. All involved 
agencies, including the County Commissioners, would go through the motions of what 
might occur in an actual emergency. 
 
Ms. Brown reported that complaints continue to be fielded by environmental health: 
potato dumping, fire burning, mold, landlord-tenant issues, etc. The Department is 
working to properly route the complaints. Ms. Brown said that agricultural burning has 
been clarified: burn barrels are not allowed, but open pit burning is allowed. She 
explained that while a log is being kept of all the complaints, these issues are not a 
priority right now. 
 
Ms. Brown requested signatures on the Healthy Community subcontracts: 
 
1. Rio Grande Public Health Agency, Healthy Communities Program, and 
Saguache County Public Health 
2. Rio Grande Pubic Health Agency, Healthy Communities Program, and Costilla 
County Board of County Commissioners/Board of Health for Professional Services 
3. Rio Grande County Public Health Agency, Healthy Communities Program, and 
Chaffee County Board of Commissioners/Board of Health on Behalf of Chaffee County 
Public Health Agency 
4. Rio Grande County Public Health Agency, Healthy Communities Program, and 
Early Childhood Council of the San Luis Valley 
 
The breakdown of payments is: 
 
Alamosa Early Childhood Council: $27,180.00 
Chaffee County:     $17,340.00 
Costilla County:    $25,680.00 
Saguache County:    $  9,300.00 
Lake County:     $  8,700.00 (outstanding) 
 
Commissioner Shriver moved to approve the contracts. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. The contracts were signed. A missing 
contract from Mineral County will be signed when Ms. Brown receives it. 



 
Ms. Brown requested signatures on the State Tobacco Education Prevention 
Partnership subcontracts: 
 
1. Rio Grande County Board of County Commissioners on behalf of Rio Grande 
County Public Health Agency and Alamosa County Board of County Commissioners on 
behalf of Alamosa County Public Health Agency 
2. Rio Grande County Commissioners on behalf of Rio Grande County Public 
Health Agency and Conejos County Board of County Commissioners on behalf of 
Conejos County Public Health and Nursing Service 
3. Rio Grande County Board of County Commissioners on behalf of Rio Grande 
County Public Health Agency and Costilla County Board of County Commissioners on 
behalf of Costilla County Public Health Agency 
4. Rio Grande County Board of County Commissioners on behalf of Rio Grande 
County Public Health Agency and Saguache County Board of County Commissioners 
on behalf of Saguache County Public Health Agency 
 
The breakdown of payments is: 
 
Alamosa County: $40,250.00 
Conejos County: $25,250.00 
Costilla County: $25,250.00 
Saguache County: $25,250.00 
 
Commissioner Bricker moved to approve the contracts. Commissioner Shriver 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. The contracts were signed. 
 
Ms. Brown requested a signature on the Nursing Affiliation Agreement between Regis 
University and Rio Grande County Public Health Agency, which will clarify internships. 
Commissioner Bricker moved to approve the contract. Commissioner Shriver seconded 
the motion and the motion carried. The contract was signed. 
 
Commissioner Bricker noted that Saguache County Public Health has a new proposal 
for sharing responsibilities with Rio Grande County Public Health. A meeting has been 
scheduled for September 11, 2015, and Ms. Osborn will let Ms. Brown know if Ms. 
Brown should attend. 
 
Ms. Brown expressed a concern regarding liability with regard to immunizations at Head 
Start. She asked if the County would be responsible if something went wrong. Ms. 
Osborn said she would get clarification from CTSI. Ms. Brown said that Head Start is 
required to have a nurse consultant available once a month to train staff on 
administering medications. Monte Vista Head Start has a new director and has 
concerns about staff administering medications. Commissioner Shriver suggested that 
the proposed training program discussed earlier for students involved with the 
medication training at the jail might also be used for Head Start training. Ms. Brown said 
she would discuss the idea with Jackie Bennett at Adams State. 



 
Ms. Brown noted upcoming meetings and trainings: 
 
August 5, 2015, Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment Fiscal Risk 
Management System site visit 
August 21, 2015, Colorado Association of Local Public Health Officials Directors 
meeting and first quarter executive training 
September 10, 2015, Board of Health, Quarantine and Isolation Policies 
October 14, 2015, Joint Interagency Oversight Group strategic planning day 
November 6, 2015, Joint Interagency Oversight Group Symposium 
 
At 10:45 a.m., Mary Baumfalk, Tri-County Senior Citizens, was present to update the 
Board. Ms. Baumfalk reported that monthly breakfasts have been served every month 
this year except for February, March, and April, when there were licensing issues. Both 
residents and community members participate in the various activities and services at 
the center: 
 
Monthly Breakfast 
Dinner Dance 
Exercise Class 
Trips 
Chicken Foot/Cards 
Bingo 
Pool 
Public Health 
Social Services 
Foot Care (from a licensed professional from Alamosa) 
Ceramics Class 
Birthday Celebrations 
 
Ms. Baumfalk reported that the Title III transportation contract has not been renewed, 
effective June 2015, due to payment delays. Tri-County is still serving the transportation 
needs of its residents with the assistance of drivers from South Fork and Del Norte. The 
drivers take residents to Walmart once a month for a fee. Ms. Baumfalk said that 
excursions within Monte Vista are counted as trips. 
 
The next Tri-County board meeting is September 3, 2015. None of the Commissioners 
is able to attend. 
 
At 11:05 a.m., Mike Hurst, Del Norte Bank, and David Colville, Cory Off, and Jay Webb, 
water users, were present to discuss concerns regarding the Meadow Glen Ditch and 
injuries to users with senior water rights. It was explained that when one ditch is shut 
off, it affects other ditches. The San Luis Valley Water Conservancy is buying 
consumptive water from the Anaconda Ditch, but non-consumptive water is staying in 
the river instead of staying in the Anaconda Ditch. Chairman Davie asked what the 
Board could do to help. Mr. Off responded that there is nothing to do right now, except 



to be aware of the issue. Mr. Off explained that Craig Cotton, Division Engineer, 
Colorado Division of Water Resources Division 3, has said that water can remain in the 
ditch, but in order to preserve the current hydrology, it cannot be used consumptively. 
 
Commissioner Bricker offered a letter of support. Mr. Hurst said that this might help, but 
that it was more important to be aware of the issue. Commissioner Shriver noted that 
she is on the board of the San Luis Valley Water Conservancy, and that she has seen 
many people wanting to sell their water. Mr. Hurst said that this has a direct effect on 
the local economy. Commissioner Shriver suggested that a conversation with the 
Conservancy might be a good idea. Mr. Webb said that this is a small issue now, but it 
may become a larger issue. Commissioner Bricker offered a letter stating that the 
Commissioners are aware of the issues.  
 
Mr. Off informed the Board that the members of the Meadow Glen ditch have hired an 
attorney. Mr. Webb noted that when land is dried up because ditch water does not flow 
to areas that need to be irrigated, real estate values are affected. Wet land is worth 
more than dry land. 
 
At 11:27 a.m., Ms. Osborn informed the Board that Louise Colville, Director, Rio Grande 
Museum, tendered her resignation effective September 11, 2015. Ms. Colville also 
cancelled the upcoming budget meeting. It was agreed that both Ms. Osborn and 
Commissioner Shriver would have individual conversations with Ms. Colville. 
 
At 11:30 a.m., Cindy Hill, Clerk and Recorder, was present. Ms. Hill requested approval 
to close the Clerk and Recorder’s office on September 16, 2015, for a fall conference. 
Commissioner Shriver moved to approve closing the office. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. Ms. Hill said an article notifying the public 
of the closing would be run in the newspaper.  
 
Ms. Hill requested approval to close the Clerk and Recorder’s office on November 3, 
2015, Election Day, for business not having to do with the election. Commissioner 
Bricker moved to approve closing the office. Commissioner Shriver seconded the 
motion and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Hill reported that the Clerk and Recorder’s office is over budget on e-recording. 
However, the Technology Fund will cover the costs. She reported that a server to be 
used for elections had to be replaced at a cost of approximately $4,000.00. There is 
$1,200.00 in the budget to cover this, but the cost can be covered from the capital 
expenditures line item.  
 
Ms. Hill requested approval to give an employee a bonus. Ms. Osborn said she would 
give Ms. Hill a form to request the bonus. 
 
At 11:45 a.m., Ms. Osborn requested ratification of signature for the Division of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 2015 Grant Program (the contract 
was signed at the managers’ meeting August 19, 2015). Commissioner Shriver moved 



to ratify the signature. Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the motion 
carried. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested ratification of claims approved at the August 19, 2015, managers’ 
meeting. Commissioner Bricker moved to ratify the approved claims. Commissioner 
Shriver seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested approval and signature on the San Luis Valley Council of 
Government Mini Grant for the Summitville kiosk. Commissioner Shriver moved to 
approve and sign the grant. Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the motion 
carried. Commissioner Shriver noted the approximate location of the kiosk on a map. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested approval and signature for the Memorandum of Understanding 
between Rio Grande County and the Town of South Fork and the Town of Del Norte 
regarding the Rio Grande County Comprehensive Plan. Commissioner Shriver moved 
to approve the MOU. Commissioner Bricker seconded the motion and the motion 
carried. The MOU with the City of Monte Vista still needs to be signed. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a letter from Frank Muniz, Veterans Service Office, Alamosa 
County, regarding the Veteran Transportation Network. A 2014 Dodge minivan was 
purchased for $22,288.00, with funds awarded through the Tobacco Industry Trust 
Fund. According to the report, a total of 138,181 miles were traveled in transporting 
veterans to Denver, Alamosa, Colorado Springs, and Pueblo during the fiscal year (July 
2014 through June 2015). 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that monthly external penetration tests were performed in June, 
July, and August by Tobin and Associates, LLC. All tests came back clean. 
 
Ms. Osborn requested a waiver of the building permit fee for the Summitville kiosk. She 
reported that Randy Kern, Building Inspector, was working on the construction plans. 
Commissioner Shriver moved to waive the building permit fee. Commissioner Bricker 
seconded the motion and the motion carried. 
 
Ms. Osborn presented a letter from Tina White, Crossroads’ Turning Points, Inc., 
requesting funds in the amount of $2,000.00 that were agreed to in January of 2014. 
Ms. McGraw noted that the 2014 budget was closed out, and the consensus of the 
Board was to not pay the $2,000.00. 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that the liability issues regarding the chipper to be purchased with 
the South Fork Fire Department have not been resolved. 
 
Ms. Osborn reminded the Board about upcoming events: 
 
• San Luis Valley All Hazards, August 24, 2015, 4:00 p.m., Alamosa 
• Del Norte Town Hall Meeting, August 26, 2015, 6:30 p.m., Del Norte 



• Breakfast with the Town of South Fork, August 31, 2015, 7:30 a.m., Feelin’ Good 
Café, South Fork (Commissioner Shriver will not be able to attend.) 
• Southern District Meeting, September 3, 2015, 10:00 a.m. 
• Lunch with Saguache County/CDPHE regarding Public Health, September 11, 
2015, 11:30 a.m., Windsor Hotel, Del Norte 
• Marijuana Information Meeting, September 22, 2015, 9:00 a.m., to 1:00 p.m. 
Alamosa County Building 
• County Commissioners Association, September 28, 2015, 9:00 a.m., Alamosa 
• Rio Grande Water Conservation District, October 20, 2015, 10:00 a.m. 
• CDOT Region 5 – 2015 County/Tribal Meeting, October 5, 2015, 2:00 p.m., 
Windsor Hotel, Del Norte 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that to date, 2,645 gallons of fuel have been sold at the airport, at 
a cost of $12,300.00. A reorder of fuel will be placed at 6,500 or 7,000 gallons. 
 
Ms. Osborn reported that she had received a call from a spay-and-neuter clinic from 
Denver requesting the use of the McMullen Building for four days, with a waiver of the 
fee for the building. The company said that it must have water, electricity, and a 
restroom in order to have the clinic (inside water and restrooms are not available in the 
McMullen Building). Ms. McGraw suggested the clinic contact the City of Monte Vista. 
 
At 12:15 p.m., the meeting was adjourned until 1:30, when work sessions were held. 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Doug Davie, Chairman     Mona Syring, Clerk and Recorder 


